



# Increasing Resilience of Smallholders with Multi-Platforms Linking Localized Resource Sharing

# **Deliverable D5.2b**

Evaluation technical framework – v2

Responsible Editor:	ACICT
Contributors:	ORANGE, UPPA
Document Reference:	RESILINK D5.2b
Distribution:	Public
Version:	1.1
Date:	February 2024

### **C**ONTRIBUTORS TABLE

DOCUMENT SECTION	AUTHOR(S)
SECTION 1	C. Pham (UPPA)
SECTION 2	S. Bradai (Orange)
SECTION 3	A. Cazaux (UPPA)
SECTION 4	A. Cazaux (UPPA)

### **D**OCUMENT REVISION HISTORY

Version	Date	Changes
V1.1	Feb 28 <sup>th</sup> , 2024	Public release
V1.0	Jan 15 <sup>th</sup> , 2024	FIRST DRAFT VERSION FOR INTERNAL APPROVAL
V0.1	Nov 15 <sup>th</sup> , 2023	FIRST RELEASE FOR REVIEW

### EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Deliverable D5.2b describes the technical evaluation framework to target the final definition and component integration for the RESILINK digital platform. The document will elaborate on the ODEP platform and the associated tests to confirm ODEP's functionalities and API for RESILINK's needs, the proof-of-concept of the RESILINK mobile application, the preliminary study of the RESILINK digital platform and the preliminary study on deployment of all these components.

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Introduction	5
2. ODEP platform	6
2.1. Evolution of ODEP platform	6
2.1.1. Data Volume limitation	6
2.1.2. Asset type abstraction	6
2.1.3. Payment By instalments	7
2.2. Dedicated RESILINK ODEP instance	7
3. RESILINK mobile application	8
3.1. Architecture & link with ODEP	8
3.2. New FIGMA-based mockup	9
3.3. Proof of concept	11
3.4. Main difficulties for the proof of concept	16
3.5. Deployment of the mobile application	17
4. RESILINK platform	17
4.1. Architecture	18
4.2. Proof of concept	19
4.3. Deployed platform	19

## **1.** INTRODUCTION

RESILINK's proposed approach is to increase smallholder's resilience by providing continuity of access to both resources and markets in crisis situations. It will empower the local agri-food value chain model by optimizing usage of local resources, promoting and generalizing local resource sharing approach and facilitating territorial markets. This local agri-food value chain model will also be integrated with the local e-commerce, supply & distribution channels. The concept of localized and short agri-food value chain will also impact on the agro ecological system by minimizing the food losses and contributing to the climate & environment changes with shorter food supply chains and logistics. As a result, new and local innovative services can be identified and created, enhancing further the smallholders' agri-food chain.

It develops a distributed digital resource management platform for real-time exchange of information on territorial resources and supplies & demands; connecting smallholders to new supply, sharing opportunities and distribution channels. In addition, RESILINK will incrementally use cutting-edge digital technologies to connect fields and farms resources, automatize and add intelligence in the agri-food value chain to provide simple application interfaces adapted to smallholders.

RESILINK has the clear ambition to make digital smart technologies attractive & accessible to smallholders. The proposed solutions will be simple to use on a daily basis so that its usage will become natural, even in non-crisis situations.

The core of the RESILINK digital resource management consists of the Orange Decentralized Exchange Place (ODEP) platform initially developed by Orange for energy and telecommunication ecosystems.

In addition to ODEP and to maximize RESILINK's usage by the end users, RESILINK will develop a mobile application that will be the main interface to simply, quickly and intuitively interact with the RESILINK digital resource management platform. An intermediate platform, referred to as the RESILINK platform, will also stand between the RESILINK mobile app and the ODEP platform to implement additional functionalities on top of ODEP.

This document describes these preliminary steps, in link with <u>D1.1 "Smallholders' resource</u> requirements and distribution channels in a local & territorial agri-food chain".

## 2.ODEP PLATFORM

### 2.1. Evolution of ODEP platform

To meet functional and performance requirements of RESILINK project, we defined some evolutions on ODEP.

#### 2.1.1. Data Volume limitation

Current version of ODEP stores all data within smart contracts in a totally on-chain manner. To enhance the performance of ODEP in terms of some metrics such as the number of transactions per second (TPS) and used gas, we adopt an on-chain/off-chain approach that separates what must be processed as digitally executed smart contracts as on-chain modules, from what must be processed as off-chain modules at the level of the REST API. We have coupled all services with a MongoDB so that we stored data that does not require a high level of security in this database. The configuration of the asset types, postulation of offers and requests will be processed as off-chain modules and their data will be stored on mongo database. However, we keep hashes registered with the Blockchain to verify the integrity of the data, mainly with payment transactions. This is done by comparing the hash stored in the Blockchain with the one calculated from data stored in MongoDB. The matching algorithm between offers and requests is fed by Mongo data and is performed in an off-chain module.

#### 2.1.2. Asset type abstraction

The terminology used for the asset type creates some confusion: material; immaterial; immaterial not quantified; immaterial with unit not measurable. The goal is to update this terminology to make it more 'understandable' and appropriate. We abstract more common transactions and change the terminology according to the table below.

Terminology ODEP V2	Terminology 2023 ODEP V3
Material with sale/purchase transaction Multiple asset of one assetType Asset quantity=1	MeasurableByQuantity Multiple assets on one assetType With Asset quantity >=0 if (Asset.subjectOfQuantity=true)
Immaterial One asset per assetType Asset quantity>=0 Offer/request quantity>0	Offer/request quantity>0
ImmaterialNotQuantified One asset per assetType Asset quantity=0 Offer/request quantity >0	
Immaterial with unit not measurable Multiple assets on one assetType	MeasurableByTime Multiple assets on one assetType
Asset/offer/request Quantity=0 Many contracts on the same offer (multiple access on the asset)	(quantity=1 with rent transaction(Asset. multipleAccess=false))
Material with rent transaction Multiple asset of one assetType Asset/offer/request quantity=1	

#### 2.1.3. Payment By instalments

This involves settling the payment based on a defined periodicity. Two types of payments will therefore co-exist:

- Total payment at the end of the period.
- Periodic payment: Periodic payment is triggered with the beginning of delivery, and then it is the responsibility of the business application to send interim measurements for payment.

### 2.2. Dedicated RESILINK ODEP instance

A dedicated instance of ODEP is instantiated for RESILINK exclusive usage.

 Authentication server: In order to call our APIs, a user will need an access token for his client application. Access token is used to identify the client application and allow it to make calls to the APIs. We are based on Orange Authorization server's implementation (OAuth), which is based on the Client Credentials Grant flow of the OAuth 2.0 specification. All APIs are secured via a valid access token retrieved from the Authentication layer. The Authentication server is accessible on this link:

http://90.84.194.104:4000/oauth/api/v1.0.0/api-docs/#/signin/signinUser

 ODEP-REST server: use smart contracts addresses and ABI (Application Binary Interface) values, which are the interfaces' values of the generated smart contracts, to trigger different transactions. Some off-chain treatments are developed on this side, such as offers/requests matching and ranking per price, sending notifications and also treating Key Performance Indicators data. It is accessible on this link: <u>http://90.84.194.104:10010/docs/#/</u>

## **3.RESILINK** MOBILE APPLICATION

### 3.1. Architecture & link with ODEP

At first, we went for a really simple design with clear blocks. The main idea was to help users, especially those less familiar with smartphones, easily find different paths on an application page (like the example shown on the home page).

=	Home 📀							
Crédit possédé : solde sur le compte								
Recharger le solde 🔿								
Vos ventes en cours								
Type d'actif Prix	image de l'actif Type d'actif Prix							
	Mes ventes 👄							
Vos achats en cours								
Image de l'actif	image de l'actif							
Prix	Prix							
	Mes achats 🔶							
Historique								
Historique								
Image Price	Achat reçu							

Furthermore, the initial app versions mandated users to possess an account for ODEP API functionality access, and consequently, access to diverse services and products. This version guided users straight to the login screen before reaching the app's services. After the General Meeting in Rabat in June 2023, several decisions have been made, particularly regarding the application's user experience. As ODEP functions as a REST API, each service utilization mandates requests, alongside a user key. In the app's early stages, a user login facilitated seamless interaction with ODEP, evolving into a more contemporary approach incorporating access to the "store." This approach necessitates only one requirement: having an account configured as a public account shared among all users.

### 3.2. New FIGMA-based mockup

A new application mock-up was therefore created using Figma to meet this new vision of the application. The following figure shows each available screen.

		•••	[DESIGN] Resilink – Figma	x +	SED. Berlink?tune=decime.tend	. id=106_16078mode=decises	taubustotytojas 🔥 🛧	• D A Terminer in miss bi	~	
		New Tab		2011001022/1010/1000201011		Desiliak				
		Q Pages ∩	00				60	Comment Properties Expor	t	
		✓ 25/10/2023 /// 圖 OLD \	ERSIONS					Q, Search	94 (	
		13/10/2023						N21 · 25/10/2023		
		06/10/2023	odify account 1					CAZAUX Axel as-tu une idé manière dont on peut déclarer whatsApp ? Qu'est-ce que l'API	ago a de la	
		Offer expire     Dialog Publ	rd Ista	Splashscreen	Home Resilink ()	Alert_Breaking news	Search form_1	2 replies	_	
		<ul> <li>Dialog Publ</li> </ul>	ish	1	Watering restrictions Alart	Watering restrictions Use to severe draught in South Morocco, we recommend that you only water your fields e	What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways	#20 · 25/10/2023		
		# Home	sunt.		Due to envire disuptit in back Monecol, we to suggest some water-serving measures.	Link to effect on Other news	ente or Write a type	<ul> <li>xDlab - Kuster Christine 16 days</li> <li>xDlab - Henry Wironique C'est u fonctionnalité à détailler davanta</li> </ul>	390 39	
		Splashscre     Alert_Break	en Ling news		Last announcements	Rood Lorent door at Asses	or IIII data <u>≤</u> data interese Sante Toposition	2 repres	-	
		# Search forr	n,2 n,3		Rent tractor and driver Or demand (Aplited)	Valer reserve dry Lown (pour dolor of arent, Temporarily non-potable water	Where do you search ?	#18 - 25/10/2023 xDlab - Kuster Christine 18 days	ago	
		# Search forr	n_1 n completed_2	RESICOLINK	Margonet - 1 worker September 2023 (Ramman)	Lowen josum dolor sit arree,	Within a redus of :	xDlab - Henry Véronique As-tu idée d'adresse fictive pour simul géoloc ?	ane ar la	
		# Search form	n completed_1 ults details	Promote local ressource sharing	Q Q + 19 Q	e q + 🕐	0 0 0 + 19 0	1 reply	-	
		# Search resi	ults list		Home Search Publish News Account	Hane Search Fullish Street A	count Home Beards Publich News Ac-	with 25/10/2023	0	
		# Publish_2						_		
			Alert_Breakin	Other_1	Offer_1					
			← News Ω Watering restrictions	e News ₫ Flood	€ Offers £					
			Use is been a page, in the pres, we reconvicted that you only water your fields early in the morning or at sumset.	the country Contact your local contexpondent. See the local being. Link to the local contexpondent lot	adama (1900)					
			Other reass Flood	Other news Upcoming farment' market Otech the new dates	Published by : Farer Abdukarten Pariad : From August 1st					
			Upconing Termens' market Check for rese done.	Tempararily non-potable water Bothed onning water is destinand every day at 2pm	The self-on-request hand-picture potations. The price depends on the quantity purchased. Contact us.					
			Sorted ansing way include water borted ansing way is demoted every day of 2 pm.	Due to server dought in the area, we estimated that you only write your	Contail					
Splashscreen	Home		Alert_Breakin	Other_2	Next Next Next Access Offer_2	Search form_1	Search form_2	Search form S	earch form Search fo	rm
	Reslink Watering restrictions Aire	a	News Q  Exceptional subsidy for seeds the to the work held earther, enceptional all for the	News D  Upcoming farmers' market  We placed non-deep for the farmers' market	e Otters B Mangewar-1 wolker D	Genth      C     What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways to search, use one of them.	Starch D  What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways to search, see one of them.	← Search Q ← What are you looking for ? W There are 3 ways to search, use one of them. The	Search Q ← Search hat are you looking for ? What are you looking er are 3 ways to search, one one of them. There are 3 ways to search s	g for ?
	Oue to severe drought in the recommend that you only wa	100, 100 101	forming of senses was pair over research complete the forming closed pairs in a balance.	Oreck the dates Other news Plant		Belect a type in the But +	Select a type in the Test . Cereals	seels O	anda 🛞 Seeda	۲
	Last offers 3 tors of protoes	and all a	Flood Roding-is-currently taking place in the reach of the country Contact proc	Fixed regin currently taking place in the south of the southy Contact part  Temparately non-potable water Bothel disting were in distributed	Published by: Farm Benguert Fariot: Sayandar 2009	er IIII 494 <u>S</u> <u>da</u> 4	Machines Sends	The second secon		
	Manpover - 1 worker September 2022 (Ferr Benguer)		Check for some dates.	Exceptional subsidy for sends Due to the recent bad weather, ecceptional all for the purchase of	One of our workers is available to help you prepare the ground. Contact us if you are interested. Contact Partners	Where do you search ?	Vegetables Workers If The e place of use the protocation	Where do you search ? W	Arre do you search ? Where do you search	17
RESICOLINK	Combine havestfar On denand (Tarm Abdeliarin)		ewyde at 220.	barnera		Within a radius of :	NObin a redux of :	Whin a radius of : Wi	Nin a radius of : Within a radius of : Kros	
Promote local resources sharing	(e) Q +	e e	e 4 + 🕐 Ø	e q + 😰 🛛	e (4) + 19 0	(iovi) R ( + 19 ( 2	R ( + 19 0			
	Home_nev	V Annual	Alert_Breakin	Other_3	Offer_3	Kona Geede Publish Kena Account	Search form_3	Search form	earch form	New Amore
	e news Moring restrictions Act		New farmers' market White delighted to service the opening of a new former' market. The opening of a new former with the dening are weather on any weather.	Temporarily non-potable water leased driving water is distributed every day at [pn.	Candona Harvestler		What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways to search, use one of them.	What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways to search, use one of them.	What are you looking for ? here are 3 ways to search, use one of them.	
	Due to severe disuplit in South M. suggest some water saving mean	rann, wr b an.	Unit to the new farmers' market website	Dher news			senier a type in the tot •	Salect a type in the lot or Barley seeds	Eelett a type in the list • r F Enriey seede	
	Last offers Rettbactur + driver	(inter	Placed Placed Place in the search of the country Contact para	South of the sourcey Contact poor	Published by : Farm Abdelkarim Period ::July 2001 We rent-our continen hannester (without driver) on		H Ⅲ dia C dia A Gente Matter Inte Veparter Mat	H     H	III di C di di C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	
	3 tees of potatoos from August the fail (Family Rodal		Temporarily non-petible water borbat driving water is distributed many side a law.	New farmers/inadiat Write delpted to answerse the spering of a new farmers' market. To register .	request. The minimum nexts period is one day. The price indicated in for a set of an end of version Contact Purchase		Where do you search ?	Where do you search ?	Vhere do you search ?	
	Margower - 1 worker September 2023 d'ann Benguer (		factors				Nithin a reduc of : Xm	Within a radius of : Kim	Nina melana fi	
	<u>د</u> ۹ +	19 Q	▲ Q, + () ↓ http://www.linet.com/				faceth	lands	6 (Q) + 19 (Q)	
	411 × 8	23			offer_4 ← offers a		Search form	Search form	Search form	
					First Tacker + Driver		What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways to search, see one of them.	Search ()     What are you looking for ?     There are 3 ways to search, use one of them.	What are you looking for ? There are 3 ways to search, ser one of them.	
					-262		Select a type in the list +	Select a type in the list	Select a type in the last	
					Published by : Farm Abdelkarim Pintot 34y 2018 We renicol thecks on repuest, The minimum annul panchs and day. The pink induced in far			e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e		
					a me day serial Cartas		Where do you search ?	Where do you search ?	Where do you search ?	
							The status of :	Within a radius of :	v = comon 1	
					Car Car + E Car Nore Back Fuller, Rev Alcovel					
							name insuch Publish hows incount	Harte Brank Publish Brans Aussert	Faster Breach Adding Fores Account	

Search saved			Payment Your payment has been accepted.			
Your search has been saved in your "Account" section "Searches saved".			You will find your purchase in your account, section "On poing purchases".			
Search result	Search result	Purchase_1	Purchase_2	Purchase_3	Publish_1	Publish_2
← Search results ⊄	← Search results Ø	← Search results ¢	← Search results Ω	← Search results Ω	← Publish Ø	← Publish Ø
Results (3)	Barley seeds	Barley seeds	Barley seeds	Barley seeds	Let's start	Let's start
Barley seeds From September (Farm Benguerir)	Steries Hard	-	-	では未必可能	Type a title	Rent tractor + driver
Barley seeds	STERN STREET	Payment Select the quantity needed :	Payment Select the quantity needed :	STATISTICS.	Meen's yes pod locate? ✓ Type a place or use the peolocation	There is you pool isoned ?
Wheet seads	的、你们的问题	200 g	200 g	的深水的影响	Contact information -	Contact information -
This week (Farm Benguerir)	Published by : Farm Benguerin Pariod : Fram now on	500 g	500 g	Published by : Farm Benguerin From now on	More details (optional) -	More details (optional) *
Modify search	We offer certified barley seeds. The price given is negotiable, contact us.	1 kg	1 kg	We offer certified barley seed. The price given is negatiable, contact us.	Publish	Publish
ouve	WhatsApp Purchase	Choose your means of payment	Choose your means of payment	WhataKop Purchase		
		Cash	Cash			
		Mobile payment	Mobile payment			
A 9 + 19 0				0 0 ± 10 0	a a 🔸 🕫 🖲	
Home Search Publish News Account	Search result	Horse Bearch Publish News Account	Horse Search Publish News Account	Horse Search Publish News Account	Home Search Publish News Account	Home Search Publish News Account
	← Search results #					
	Barley seeds					
	SCHOOL STREET					
	17 8 18 AS					
	Dart Salar					
	Published by: Farm Abdelkarim Pariod July 2023					
	This late variety has good productivity with a high realistence to barley yellows.					
	Contact Purchase					
	a 9 + 19 0					
	Sëarch result					
	← Search results @					
	Wheat seeds					
	Solar Share					
	CHACK -					
	Published by : Farm Benguerir Period : March 2023					
	the variety we offer can be sown in both winter and autumn					
	Contact					
	ଛ 🔍 + 🛤 🗉					
	movie Saardh Publish News Account					

offer published the offer published with a the offer published with a Draw Publish_3 Publish_4	Publish_5	ublish_6	Publish_7	Publish_8	Account	Search saved	Expired offer The unity of a dynamic when is appendix the comparison the affer and regulation is: the second second second second second the second seco
Abity 2      Abity 2	A ← PARATA A      A      A ← PARATA A      A      A ← PARATA	PAM     P			Accent     Accent	Account      A	← Account 0 Moddy an effort Mathematic sets / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / / /
Q     +     IP     Q     +       Innee     Gareth     Pablish     Nove     Anneet	19 D Re Q H BOOM	A Q + Marian Krass Account	A Q + B C C A A C C A C C C A C	Ca Q, + CP Co Holinh Revea Access	ione Sant Patiet Save Account	A Q + P	A Q + E Contraction Sealers

#### **3.3. Proof of concept**

In this proof of concept (PoC), as mentioned earlier, we will use the Flutter framework and the ODEP API to craft our application. As it stands, the application starts with a loading screen, requiring the user to wait while a JSON configuration file is fetched from GitHub and processed by the software. Later, this configuration file will be moved and hosted by an intermediary platform.

On this screen, the program checks the application's local configuration registry to determine if a language has been previously selected. If so, it stores this value and applies it to the application; if not, it defaults to the language defined in the smartphone's system and sets this as the default language in local configuration registry.

The same logic applies to verifying a utility connection. The process involves checking if a user structure is registered in local memory. If it exists, the application sends a connection request to the API to acquire the user's key; if not, a connection is established with the pre-created public account, allowing the user access to specific functions. Additionally, an asynchronous function runs concurrently to fetch the key corresponding to the currently connected account every two hours.



Following that, the user is directed to the "store" page. Here, utilizing the navigation bar, they can sequentially access the "profile," "news," "store," "settings," and "menu" pages. From this page, the user can initiate a search either by pressing the advanced search button or simply typing a name into the search bar.

The shop page displays available and valid offers for sale, encompassing services, products, manpower, etc. It provides crucial details such as the offer's image, the offerer's nickname, price, the deal's end date, and the remaining quantity if applicable. Furthermore, if the user wishes to filter offers, they can click on "Advanced options" to explore restrictions that can be added to the filter.

For more detailed information about an offer, tapping on it will open a pop-up displaying all the relevant details and suggesting the user initiate a contract.



On the profile page, once logged in, the user will be able to see a list of his assets, offers and contracts. They can create an offer and an asset via this page, as well as modify or delete their assets/offers/contracts.



When generating an asset, the user needs to choose the desired asset type and then input the attributes for the asset. There's an option to select an asset from a predefined list, which will automatically fill in some of the fields.

Furthermore, for specific types of asset specifications, the user will be presented with multiple choices, allowing them to finalize the asset based on their preferences.

ning Devices:	📮 Galaxy Nexus API 27 🗵 🗖	ning Devices:	${\Bbb G}_{\!\scriptscriptstyle  m B}$ Galaxy Nexus API 27 $ imes$	
• • • •	▲ ● ■ 卤 ■ ⑤ ÷	● ● <b>05 </b> CO	< ● ■ Ø ■ ⑦ ÷	
	Creation of an asset		Creation of an asset	
1	Pre-existing assets to help you  *Select a value to confirm your choice	1	Pre-existing assets to help you "Select a value to confirm your choice apple	
	or custom asset ∨ none ▼	A A Ti tc S S A A 	assetType : Fruits asset name *: apple iransaction type: sale/purchase ▼ otalQuantity(kg)*: 100 pecification type : Color green ▼ pecification type : Type apple	
	< • •			

Ð	•	٥٥	<□ ◄	• •	<b>Ó</b> •	• © ۱				
	1	(						- 0	0	
								•	🏹 🗎 3:	50
				a	sset av	vailables	to make	e an offer		
						apple	*			
			offere	er : acaz	zaux					ľ
			asset	name	apple	÷				
			Date	/Sche	dule					
	1		Durat	ion : (	1	week 🔻				
			offere	edQuan	tity* :	0				
			price	*: 0						
			depo	sit*: (1	0					
			cance	ellation	Fee* :	0				
								Confirm		
					•	•		-		

To generate an offer, the user needs to pick the asset associated with the offer. Once an asset has been selected, the user can proceed to input all the necessary values required by the asset for the offer to be successfully created in the database.

In the main navigation (right figure), there are the settings and menu screens. The purpose of the menu is to provide an additional link between all the pages and the new features that will be added over time. This is where they will be available.



The settings page (right figure) contains various parameters, some of which can be accessed even without the user being logged in. The parameters currently implemented are user profile modification and application language change.

The news page displays the latest article in the list, with a direct link to the article's web page and a list of articles below it.

		R	tunning Devi	tes		
nning	Devices:	Galaxy M	Nexus API 27	×		• •
				2 63 8	0	
	Contraction of the second s	Insum	News		<b>▲ 3:28</b>	
1	Lorem ips elusmod t enim ad n nisi ut alio reprehenc	um dolor sit an tempor incididu ninim veniam, q juip ex ea comr lerit in voluptate	net, consectetur nt ut labore et do uis nostrud exer nodo consequat e velit esse cillun	adipiscing elit, olore magna ali citation ullamc . Duis aute irun n dolore eu fug	sed do iqua. Ut to laboris e dolor in jiat nulla	
	Other ne	ws		Link to offic	cial website	
1	Title 1 Body 1			(		
	Title 2 Body 2			(		
	Title 3 Body 3					
					See more	
	•	E	Ä	\$	=	
		•	•	•		
						1

#### **3.4.** Main difficulties for the proof of concept

One important issue is that the ODEP API is currently unavailable for iOS. Since the ODEP API operates as a REST API, utilizing a web link, it poses a security concern. Unfortunately, iOS does not accept any interaction with a non-secure website (https yes / http no).

Some issues have been addressed (solutions may change):

- Capturing photos from the gallery or camera.
- Storing photos using the IMGUR API, enabling the storage and retrieval of images through an HTML link and fetching.
- Pre-completion of assets and a word list to aid in filling offers based on assetType, saved in an internal JSON.
- Implementation of a system to retrieve a configuration file containing data related to the user's country upon the application's initial launch or request.

Some problem still need to be solved:

- Consistent, modern and easy-to-understand UX.
- IOS permissions not fully tested.
- Have a real server for photos. IMGUR has a maximum size for storing photos (in progress).

### **3.5. Deployment of the mobile application**

A revised deployment method has been explored and chosen, building upon the deployment method previously tested in D5.2a. The updated approach involves placing the application on Dropbox cloud, with a QR code linked to the URL provided by Dropbox. By simply scanning the QR code, the application file will be installed. The QR code is accessible on the shared drive RESILINK-PROJECT/RESILINK-MOBILE-APP or below.



## 4. RESILINK PLATFORM

Building on the studies outlined in section 2, RESILINK suggests the implementation of a dedicated intermediate RESILINK platform to serve as a front-end to the ODEP platform. The illustration below depicts this concept.



From Orange ODEP presentation. Salma Bradai, Sofrecom



will function as an API intermediary between the ODEP API and our mobile

The server will function as an API intermediary between the ODEP API and our mobile application. Currently, the server is not deployed for open access but is exclusively available for developers.

Similar to the ODEP API, this server will also leverage Swagger technology. This approach allows for the automatic generation of documentation, streamlining testing, and facilitating seamless interchange between different versions of our server in the future.

#### 4.1. Architecture

Since we are still in the developmental phase, we chose a simple server architecture and employed a backup file as our temporary database. It is important to note that a genuine database will be required for effective scaling in the future. The current server is structured as follows – it is the result of a first PoC carried out by Manuel Munier from UPPA with the help of Marc Despland from Orange.

> node_modules	
∨ src	
∨ api/v1	
> controllers	
> repositories	
> routes	
> services	
JS swagger.js	
JS index.js	
<ol> <li>README.txt</li> </ol>	
<pre>{} package-lock.json</pre>	
<pre>{} package.json</pre>	

In the root directory, the server configuration files with packages and versions, along with various modules essential for server operation, will be situated.

The "src" child folder will house the server code, encompassing the "index.js" file and the "api" folder. The "index.js" file manages incoming calls (get, post, etc.) and defines the paths to the files/folders to be utilized, specifying the server version.

Within the version-specific folder (e.g., v1), there are the "swagger.js" file, along with the "controllers," "repositories," "routes," and "services" folders.

The swagger file facilitates the definition of how URLs for accessing documentation are formed and allows the addition of extra functionalities.

Files within the "controllers" folder serve as controllers responsible for managing HTTP requests, validating data, and interacting with the appropriate services.

The "services" folder contains files with the application's business logic, handling data manipulation, communication with models, and execution of domain-specific tasks.

In the "routes" folder, files define API entry points and determine which controller methods should be called in response to HTTP requests.

Finally, in the "repositories" folder, files are responsible for accessing data from databases, file systems, or other sources. They encapsulate data access logic and enable the rest of the application to work with data in an abstract manner.

#### 4.2. Proof of concept

Orange and UPPA investigated the technology building blocks: NodeJS, Javascript, and conducted tests on HTTP REST API.

The PoC developed by Manuel Munier consists of two servers. The initial API intended for RESILINK, designed to act as an intermediary platform for data filtering, is coded in Node.js (Javascript) using Express and Swagger technology to simplify server construction and documentation.

In addition to this server, a second Java server, also utilizing Swagger, serves as the ODEP API. Its role is focused on data retrieval and communication.

As of now, the PoC is operational, with both servers communicating effectively with each other.

#### 4.3. Deployed platform

The platform is currently hosted on a free server provided by the hosting service Render, and one can access the Swagger documentation for the platform <u>here</u> (<u>https://resilink-api.onrender.com/v1/api-docs/</u>).

The platform is a server platform constructed with Node.js, hence utilizing Javascript. The use of Javascript allows us to leverage Swagger, a documentation library that is also applicable to a Java server, and Express, a framework enhancing the robustness of server-side applications. Additionally, we have integrated a MongoDB (NoSQL) database with our server. This is particularly beneficial for storing data in memory that ODEP doesn't consider (e.g., a user's telephone number).



The server architecture mirrors that of the PoC, with the "repositories" folder now labeled as "database."

The server's purpose is to redirect and transform data transmitted to and received from ODEP. All requests initially directed to ODEP have been replicated with the same header (path after the domain URL). The distinction lies in the domain name, and requests are now directed to an HTTPS address rather than HTTP, making it compatible with iPhones. All data transformation and calculation functions are now transferred from the mobile application to the server to enhance the telephone's performance.

Furthermore, it is possible to store additional data and associate it with other data in the database. If users choose to provide them, we can retrieve and save them in the database, associating it with their ODEP ID for future retrieval. To avoid complications with data setup, we simply need to exclude them from the data intended for transmission to ODEP.

### **A**CRONYMS LIST

Acronym	Explanation
ABI	Application Binary Interface
API	Application Programming Interface
АРК	Android Package Kit
НМІ	Human Machine Interface
НТТР	Hyper Text Transfer Protocol
JSON	JavaScript Object Notation
ODEP	Orange Decentralized Exchange Place
РоС	Proof-of-Concept
QR code	Quick-Response code

## **PROJECT CO-ORDINATOR CONTACT**

Pr. Congduc Pham University of Pau Avenue de l'Université 64000 PAU FRANCE Email: Congduc.Pham@univ-pau.fr

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

This document has been produced in the context of the PRIMA RESILINK project. The RESILINK project consortium would like to acknowledge that the research leading to these results has received funding from the European Union through the PRIMA program.